
 

 
 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 

 
April 21, 2022 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

Regular Session begins at 9:00 a.m.  
Estimated Ending Time 11:30 a.m. 

 

Virtual Meeting via Zoom 

https://sonomacounty.zoom.us/j/92248855470?pwd=OFFVNUliWVh5Wk5SSzVyWWdWbndjdz09 

Or Telephone: +1 669 900 9128 

Webinar ID: 922 4885 5470 

Passcode: 157476 

 

Meeting Agenda and Documents 

https://sonomacounty.zoom.us/j/92248855470?pwd=OFFVNUliWVh5Wk5SSzVyWWdWbndjdz09


ZERO WASTE SONOMA 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 

April 21, 2022 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
Regular Session begins at 9:00 a.m. 

 
Table of Contents 

 Description            Page 

Agenda    1 
Agenda Notes    4 
Item 4.1: Minutes of the February 17, 2022 Meeting   5 
Item 4.2: February, March, April, and May 2022 Outreach Calendar   9 
Item 4.3: Resolution No. 2022-10, Making Findings and Determinations Under AB 361  12 
  for the Continuation of Virtual Meetings 
Item 4.4: ZSW FY 2021/22 Third Quarter Financial Report  21 
Item 4.5: Approval of Second Amendment to Agreement for E-Waste Handling,   28 
  Transportation, and Recycling Services 
Item 5:  Approval of the Third Amendment to the Agreement for Household Hazardous  50 
  Waste Operations 
   
 
   
 
      
 
 
 

 
Note: This packet is 81 pages total 



2300 County Center Drive, Suite B100    Santa Rosa, California  95403    Phone: 707/565-3579    www.zerowastesonoma.gov 

 Zero Waste Sonoma 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 

April 21, 2022 
REGULAR MEETING 

Regular Session begins at 9:00 a.m. 
Estimated Ending Time 11:30 a.m. 

In accordance with Executive Orders N-25-20 and N-29-20 the Board of 
Directors meeting will be held virtually. 

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC MAY NOT ATTEND THIS MEETING IN PERSON 

Virtual Meeting via Zoom 
https://sonomacounty.zoom.us/j/92248855470?pwd=OFFVNUliWVh5Wk5SSzVyWWdWb

ndjdz09 

Or Telephone: +1 669 900 9128 
Webinar ID: 922 4885 5470 

Passcode: 157476 

PUBLIC COMMENT: 
Public Comment may be submitted via recorded voice message or email.  Public comment 
may also be made by “raising your hand” using the Zoom platform.   

Voice recorded public comment: To submit public comment via recorded message, please 
call 707-565-2722 by 5:00 pm Wednesday, April 20th. State your name and the item 
number(s) on which you wish to speak. The recordings will be limited to two minutes. 
These comments may be played or read at the appropriate time during the board meeting. 

Email public comment: To submit an emailed public comment to the Board please email 
leslie.lukacs@sonoma-county.org and provide your name, the number(s) on which you 
wish to speak, and your comment. These comments will be emailed to all Board members 
and can be provided anytime leading up to and throughout the meeting. 

1

https://sonomacounty.zoom.us/j/92248855470?pwd=OFFVNUliWVh5Wk5SSzVyWWdWbndjdz09
https://sonomacounty.zoom.us/j/92248855470?pwd=OFFVNUliWVh5Wk5SSzVyWWdWbndjdz09
mailto:leslie.lukacs@sonoma-county.org


2300 County Center Drive, Suite B100    Santa Rosa, California  95403    Phone: 707/565-3579    www.zerowastesonoma.gov 

Agenda 

Item 

1. Call to Order Regular Meeting

2. Agenda Approval

3. Public Comments (items not on the agenda)

Consent (w/attachments) 

4.1    Minutes of the February 17, 2022 Regular Meeting 
4.2    February, March, April, and May 2022 Outreach Calendar 
4.3    Resolution No. 2022-10, Making Findings and Determinations Under AB 361 for  

 the Continuation of Virtual Meetings 
 4.4 ZSW FY 2021/22 Third Quarter Financial Report 
4.5   Approval of Second Amendment to Agreement for E-Waste Handling, 

Transportation, and Recycling Services 

Regular Calendar 

5. Approval of the Third Amendment to the Agreement for Household Hazardous Waste
Operations [Scott]

6. Boardmember Comments – NO ACTION

7. Executive Director Report – VERBAL REPORT

8. Staff Comments – NO ACTION

9. Next ZWS meeting:  May 19, 2022

10. Adjourn

Consent Calendar:  These matters include routine financial and administrative actions and are usually approved by a single 
majority vote.  Any Boardmember may remove an item from the consent calendar. 

Regular Calendar:  These items include significant and administrative actions of special interest and are classified by 
program area.  The regular calendar also includes "Set Matters," which are noticed hearings, work sessions and public 
hearings. 

Public Comments: Pursuant to Rule 6, Rules of Governance of the Sonoma County Waste Management Agency/Zero Waste 
Sonoma, members of the public desiring to speak on items that are within the jurisdiction of the Agency shall have an 
opportunity at the beginning and during each regular meeting of the Agency.  When recognized by the Chair, each person  

2



2300 County Center Drive, Suite B100    Santa Rosa, California  95403    Phone: 707/565-3579    www.zerowastesonoma.gov 

should give his/her name and address and limit comments to 3 minutes.  Public comments will follow the staff report and 
subsequent Boardmember questions on that Agenda item and before Boardmembers propose a motion to vote on any 
item. 

Disabled Accommodation:  If you have a disability that requires the agenda materials to be in an alternative format or 
requires an interpreter or other person to assist you while attending this meeting, please contact the Zero Waste Sonoma 
Office at 2300 County Center Drive, Suite B100, Santa Rosa, (707) 565-3579, at least 72 hours prior to the meeting, to 
ensure arrangements for accommodation by the Agency. 

Noticing:  This notice is posted 72 hours prior to the meeting on the internet at www.zerowastesonoma.gov 

3

http://www.zerowastesonoma.gov/


2300 County Center Drive, Suite B 100, Santa Rosa, California 95403 | Phone: 707.565.3579 | www.zerowastesonoma.gov  

        

To: Zero Waste Sonoma Board Members 

From: Leslie Lukacs, Executive Director 

Subject: April 21, 2022 Board Meeting Agenda Notes 

Consent Calendar 
These items include routine financial, informational and administrative items and staff recommends that 
they be approved en masse by a single vote.  Any Board member may remove an item from the consent 
calendar for further discussion or a separate vote by bringing it to the attention of the Chair.  

4.1 February 17, 2022 Meeting Minutes 
4.2     February, March, April, May 2022 Outreach Calendar  
4.3    Resolution No. 2022-10, Making Findings and Determinations Under AB 361 for 

the Continuation of Virtual Meetings 
4.4    FY 2021/22 Third Quarter Financial Report 
4.5    Approval of Second Amendment to Agreement for E-Waste Handling, Transportation, and Recycling 

Services 

Regular Calendar 

5. Approval of the Third Amendment to the Agreement for Household Hazardous Waste Operations
In March of 2014, the SCWMA released a request for proposals for Operations of Household Hazardous 
Waste Programs and entered into an agreement with Clean Harbors Environmental Services (Clean 
Harbors) on May 21, 2014.  The First Amendment to the Agreement was approved on November 16, 2016 
with a termination date of June 30, 2019. In April 2019, the Board approved a Second Amendment to the 
Agreement expires on June 30, 2022.  Staff recommends the Board approve the resolution authorizing the 
Zero Waste Sonoma Executive Director to execute the Third Amendment to the Agreement for 
Household Hazardous Waste Operations with Clean Harbors Environmental Services  

4

http://www.zerowastesonoma.gov/


February 17, 2022 – SCWMA Meeting Minutes 

Agenda Item #: 4.1 
Agenda Date: 2 

Minutes of the February 17, 2022 Meeting 

Zero Waste Sonoma met on February 17, 2022, via Zoom to hold a virtual board meeting. 

Board Members Present: 
City of Cloverdale – Marta Cruz City of Santa Rosa - John Sawyer 
City of Cotati - Susan Harvey  City of Sebastopol – Neysa Hinton 
City of Healdsburg – Ariel Kelley City of Sonoma  - Absent 
City of Petaluma – Patrick Carter County of Sonoma – Susan Gorin 
City of Rohnert Park - Pam Stafford Town of Windsor - Deb Fudge 

Staff Present: 
Executive Director: Leslie Lukacs 
Counsel: Ethan Walsh  
Staff: Xinci Tan, Sloane Pagal, Thora Collard, Courtney Scott, Kristen Sales 
Agency Clerk: Thora Collard  

1. Call to Order Regular Meeting
Regular session was called to order at 9:04 a.m.
Introductions

2. Agenda Approval

3. Public Comments (items not on the agenda)
None

4. Consent (w/attachments)
4.1  Minutes of the January 20, 2022 Regular Meeting 
4.2    January, February, and March 2022 Outreach Calendar 
4.3    Resolution No. 2022-5, Making Findings and Determinations Under AB 361 for 

 the Continuation of Virtual Meetings 
4.4    Updated Reserve Policy 

Action Items: 
None 

Public Comments: 
None 

Motion: For approval of all items of the consent calendar. 

First: City of Cotati – Susan Harvey 
Second: County of Sonoma – Susan Gorin 

5



February 17, 2022 – SCWMA Meeting Minutes 

Vote Count for Items 4.1: 
City of Cloverdale AYE City of Santa Rosa AYE 
City of Cotati  AYE City of Sebastopol ABSTAIN 
City of Healdsburg AYE City of Sonoma  ABSENT 
City of Petaluma AYE County of Sonoma AYE 
City of Rohnert Park AYE Town of Windsor AYE 

AYES -8- NOES -0- ABSENT -1- ABSTAIN -1- 
Motion passed. 

Vote Count for Item 4.2, 4.3, 4.4: 
City of Cloverdale AYE City of Santa Rosa AYE 
City of Cotati  AYE City of Sebastopol AYE 
City of Healdsburg AYE City of Sonoma  ABSENT 
City of Petaluma AYE County of Sonoma AYE 
City of Rohnert Park AYE Town of Windsor AYE 

AYES -9- NOES -0- ABSENT -1- ABSTAIN -0- 
Motion passed. 

Regular Calendar 

5. FY21/22 Budget Adjustment [Collard]

Board Comments/Action Items:
• Clarification requested on the dollar amounts for the reserve balances

Public Comments:  
Sam Salmon commented that the Board should prioritize in-county composting over other 
projects. 

Motion: For approval of the FY 2021-22 Budget Adjustment 

First: City of Cotati – Susan Harvey  
Second: City of Santa Rosa – John Sawyer 

Vote Count: 
City of Cloverdale AYE City of Santa Rosa AYE 
City of Cotati  AYE City of Sebastopol AYE 
City of Healdsburg AYE City of Sonoma  ABSENT 
City of Petaluma AYE County of Sonoma AYE 
City of Rohnert Park AYE Town of Windsor AYE 

AYES -9- NOES -0- ABSENT -1- ABSTAIN -0- 
Motion passed. 

6



February 17, 2022 – SCWMA Meeting Minutes 

6. Public Hearing for the Consideration of Organics Disposal Fee and ZWS Fee Increase [Collard]

Board Comments/Action Items:
• Education the public on organics should be a main priority
• Assisted living communities will need direct focus for waste diversion education
• Board is more supportive of small fee increases that are easier to justify than large jumps in fees
• Board supports conservative approach to financials reserves and preserving balances for
pending projects
• More visual representations in staff reports could help the public understand the material
presented.  Presenting total fee increases to all rates, not just ZWS, will help the board see the
whole picture.

Public Comments:  
Sam Salmon – ZWS fee increase is less concerning than increases by the hauler and landfill 
operator.  Again stressed the need for the Board to re-focus its attention towards in-county 
composting. 
Dan Noble – Expressed support for ZWS and its programs and expressed his desire to help educate 
the public on making Sonoma County a circular economy 
Stu Clark – Supports staff recommendations.  Commented that this modest increase allows ZWS 
to make a large impact with improved programs. 

Motion: For approval of a $2.00/ton increase to the ZWS and a $2.75/ton increase to the organics 
tipping fee effective April 1, 2022 

First: City of Petaluma – Patrick Carter 
Second: City of Rohnert Park – Pam Stafford 

Vote Count: 
City of Cloverdale AYE City of Santa Rosa AYE 
City of Cotati  AYE City of Sebastopol AYE 
City of Healdsburg AYE City of Sonoma  ABSENT 
City of Petaluma AYE County of Sonoma AYE 
City of Rohnert Park AYE Town of Windsor AYE 

AYES -9- NOES -0- ABSENT -1- ABSTAIN -0- 
Motion passed. 

7. Approval of the Fiscal Year 2022-23 Final Budget [Collard]

Board Comments/Action Items:
• None

Public Comments: 
None 

Motion: For approval of a FY2022/23 ZWS Final Budget 

7



February 17, 2022 – SCWMA Meeting Minutes 

First: City of Cotati – Susan Harvey 
Second: City of Santa Rosa – John Sawyer 

Vote Count: 
City of Cloverdale AYE City of Santa Rosa AYE 
City of Cotati  AYE City of Sebastopol AYE 
City of Healdsburg AYE City of Sonoma  ABSENT 
City of Petaluma AYE County of Sonoma AYE 
City of Rohnert Park AYE Town of Windsor AYE 

AYES -9- NOES -0- ABSENT -1- ABSTAIN -0- 
Motion passed. 

8. Boardmember Comments – NO ACTION
Windsor received presentation from the students from Sebastopol and it was well received.

9. Executive Director Report – NO ACTION
Executive Director presented report.

10. Staff Comments – NO ACTION
None

11. Next SCWMA meeting: March 17, 2022

12. Adjourn: 10:18 am

Submitted by: Thora Collard 

8



2300 County Center Drive, Suite B 100, Santa Rosa, California  95403  Phone: 707.565.3579  Visit our website at www.zerowastesonoma.gov 

 Agenda Item #:  4.2 
  Agenda Date:  4/21/2022 

ITEM:  February, March, April, and May 2022 Outreach Calendar 

February 2022 OUTREACH  

Start date End date Start time End time Event 

2/1/22 2/1/22 4:00 PM 8:00 PM Household Hazardous Waste Event (Santa Rosa) 

2/3/22 2/3/22 10:00 AM 2:00 PM DMV Outreach (Santa Rosa) 

2/4/22 2/4/22 8:00 AM 11:00 AM DMV Outreach (Petaluma) 

2/8/22 2/8/22 4:00 PM 8:00 PM Household Hazardous Waste Event (Healdsburg) 

2/8/22 2/8/22 8:00 AM 9:30 AM Graton Labor Center (Graton) 

2/18/22 2/18/22 9:00 AM 10:00 AM Participated with the Latino Service Providers Youth Promoters Group 
(Santa Rosa) 

2/15/22 2/15/22 4:00 PM 8:00 PM Household Hazardous Waste Event (Cotati) 

2/15/22 2/15/22 10:00 AM 11:00 AM Lideres Campesinas Group (Sonoma) 

2/22/22 2/22/22 4:00 PM 8:00 PM Household Hazardous Waste Event (Santa Rosa, W) 

2/25/22 2/27/22 9:00 AM 5:00 PM E-Waste Recycling Event (Cloverdale)

2/25/22 2/25/22 10:00 AM 2:00 PM DMV Outreach (Santa Rosa) 

2/26/22 2/26/22 9:00 AM 5:00 PM Mattress Recycling Event (Cloverdale) 

March 2022 OUTREACH 
Start date End date Start time End time Event 

3/1/22 3/1/22 4:00 PM 8:00 PM Household Hazardous Waste Event (Kenwood) 

3/1/22 3/1/22 10:00 AM 11:00 AM Pasitos Program presentation with Parents, Albert Biella 
Elementary School (Santa Rosa) 

3/2/22 3/2/22 10:00 AM 11:00 AM Pasitos Program presentation with Parents, Comstock Middle 
School (Santa Rosa) 

3/3/22 3/3/22 10:00 AM 11:00 AM Pasitos Program presentation with Parents, Brook Hill Elementary 
School, (Santa Rosa) 

3/4/22 3/4/22 9:30 AM 10:30 AM Pasitos Program presentation with Parents, Lewis Early Learning 
Academy (Santa Rosa) 

3/4/22 3/4/22 11:30 AM 12:30 PM Pasitos Program presentation with Parents, Lewis Early Learning 
Academy (Santa Rosa) 

3/7/22 3/7/22 8:00 AM 5:00 PM Z2 Tracks Days at Sonoma Raceway - Riders Recycle (Sonoma) 

3/8/22 3/8/22 4:00 PM 8:00 PM Household Hazardous Waste Event (Monte Rio) 

3/8/22 3/8/22 8:00 AM 9:30 AM Graton Labor Center (Graton) 

9



2300 County Center Drive, Suite B 100, Santa Rosa, California  95403  Phone: 707.565.3579  Visit our website at www.zerowastesonoma.gov 

Start date End date Start time End time Event 

3/8/22 3/8/22 9:30 AM 10:30 AM Pasitos Program presentation with Parents, Amarosa Academy 
(Santa Rosa) 

3/8/22 3/8/22 12:30 PM 1:30 PM Pasitos Program presentation with Parents, Amarosa Academy 
(Santa Rosa) 

3/8/22 3/8/22 10:30 AM 11:30 AM Pasitos Program presentation with Parents, Roseland Elementary 
School (Santa Rosa) 

3/9/22 3/9/22 9:30 AM 10:30 AM Pasitos Program presentation with Parents, Amarosa Academy 
RM # A101 (Santa Rosa) 

3/9/22 3/9/22 12:30 PM 1:30 PM Pasitos Program presentation with Parents, Amarosa Academy 
RM # A101 (Santa Rosa) 

3/9/22 3/9/22 11:00 AM 12:00 PM Pasitos Program presentation with Parents ( Sonoma) 

3/10/22 3/10/22 9:30 AM 10:30 AM Pasitos Program presentation with Parents, Lewis Early Learning 
Academy (Santa Rosa) 

3/10/22 3/10/22 12:30 PM 1:30 PM Pasitos Program presentation with Parents, Lewis Early Learning 
Academy (Santa Rosa) 

3/10/22 3/10/22 1:30 PM 2:30 PM Pasitos Program presentation with Parents, Healdsburg Salon 
Community Center #1 (Healdsburg) 

3/11/22 3/11/22 9:30 AM 10:30 AM Pasitos Program presentation with Parents, Cali Calmecac 
Language Academy (Windsor) 

3/11/22 3/11/22 12:30 PM 1:30 PM Pasitos Program presentation with Parents, Cali Calmecac 
Language Academy (Windsor) 

3/11/22 3/11/22 10:30 AM 11:30 AM Pasitos Program presentation with Parents, Monroe Elementary 
School, RM # B3 (Santa Rosa) 

3/11/22 3/13/22 9:00 AM 5:00 PM E-Waste Recycling Event (Graton)

3/12/22 3/12/22 9:00 AM 5:00 PM Mattress Recycling Event (Graton) 

3/15/22 3/15/22 2:00 PM 7:00 PM Household Hazardous Waste Event (Oakmont) 

3/22/22 3/22/22 4:00 PM 8:00 PM Household Hazardous Waste Event (Windsor) 

3/29/22 3/29/22 4:00 PM 8:00 PM Household Hazardous Waste Event (Petaluma) 

April  2022 OUTREACH 
Start date End date Start time End time Event 

4/5/22 4/5/22 4:00 PM 8:00 PM Household Hazardous Waste Event (Sebastopol) 

4/8/22 4/10/22 9:00 AM 5:00 PM E-Waste Recycling Event (Sonoma)

4/9/22 4/9/22 9:00 AM 5:00 PM Mattress Recycling Event (Sonoma) 

4/12/22 4/12/22 4:00 PM 8:00 PM Household Hazardous Waste Event (Larkfield) 

4/12/22 4/12/22 8:00 AM 9:30 AM Graton Labor Center (Graton) 

4/13/22 4/13/22 12:00 PM 1:30 PM Santa Rosa Junior College Presentation 

4/13/22 4/13/22 12:00 pm 1:30 PM Sonoma State University Presentation 

4/14/22 4/14/22 6:00 PM 7:00 PM Charlas via Zoom with Karina Garcia (Sonoma) 

10



2300 County Center Drive, Suite B 100, Santa Rosa, California  95403  Phone: 707.565.3579  Visit our website at www.zerowastesonoma.gov 

4/19/22 4/19/22 4:00 PM 8:00 PM Household Hazardous Waste Event (Sonoma) 

4/21/22 4/24/22 10:00 AM 9:00 PM Cloverdale Citrus Fair (Cloverdale) 

4/23/12 4/23/22 11:00 AM 2:00 PM Santa Rosa Earth Day  (Santa Rosa) 

4/23/22 4/24/22 9:00 AM 5:00 PM E-Waste Recycling Event (Monte Rio)

4/23/22 4/23/22 9:00 AM 5:00 PM Mattress Recycling Event (Monte Rio) 

4/26/22 4/26/22 4:00 PM 8:00 PM Household Hazardous Waste Event (Cloverdale) 

4/30/22 4/30/22 10:00 AM 5:00 PM Bodega Bay Fisherman’s Festival (Bodega Bay) 

May 2022 OUTREACH 
Start date End date Start time End time Event 

5/1/22 5/1/22 10:00 AM 5:00 PM Bodega Bay Fisherman’s Festival (Bodega Bay) 

5/1/22 5/1/22 10:00 AM 4:00 PM Fire and Earthquake Safety Expo 2022 (Cloverdale) 

5/10/22 5/10/22 8:00 AM 9:30 AM Graton Labor Center (Graton) 

5/13/22 5/15/22 9:00 AM 5:00 PM E-Waste Recycling Event (Healdsburg)

5/14/22 5/14/22 9:00 AM 5:00 PM Mattress Recycling Event (Healdsburg) 

5/18/22 5/18/22 5:00 PM 8:30 PM Wednesday Downtown Market (Santa Rosa) 

5/25/22 5/25/22 5:00 PM 8:30 PM Wednesday Downtown Market (Santa Rosa) 

11



2300 County Center Drive, Suite B 100, Santa Rosa, California  95403  Phone: 707.565.3579  Visit our website at www.zerowastesonoma.gov 

Agenda Item #: 4.3 
Staff Contact: Walsh 
Agenda Date: 4/21/2022 
Approved By: LL 

ITEM:  Resolution No. 2022-10, Making Findings and Determinations Under 
 AB 361 for the Continuation of Virtual Meetings 

I. RECOMMENDED ACTION / ALTERNATIVES TO RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends that the Board adopt Resolution No. 2022-10, making findings and
determinations under AB 361 for the continuation of virtual meetings.

II. BACKGROUND

On March 17, 2020, in the face of the COVID-19 pandemic, Governor Gavin Newsom issued
Executive Order N-29-20 suspending certain provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act in order
to allow for local legislative bodies to conduct their meetings completely telephonically or
by other electronic means.

The provisions in the Brown Act that were suspended by the Governor’s Executive Order are
contained in Government Code Section 54953(b)(3) and require that when teleconferencing
is used, outside of a statewide emergency, that the following occur:

• An agenda is required to be posted at all locations, including any teleconference
locations

• Each teleconference location must be identified on the actual agenda
• Each teleconference location shall be accessible to the public
• A quorum of the legislative body must be in the jurisdiction

With the Governor’s Executive Order, the four above requirements were suspended, 
allowing councilmembers to not have to post an agenda at their teleconference location, 
not have to identify their location on the meeting agenda, not have to ensure public 
accessibility at the teleconference location, and the legislative body did not need a quorum 
in the jurisdiction.  As the Board is aware, this allowed the Board meetings to be conducted 
by Zoom with Board members, staff, and the public all joining from remote locations. 

The suspension of certain provisions of the Brown Act was further extended by the 
Governor on June 11, 2021 by the issuance of Executive Order N-08-21, which continued to 
allow for complete virtual meetings until September 30, 2021.   

On September 16, 2021, the Governor signed AB 361, which allows legislative bodies to 
meet virtually provided there is a state of emergency declared by the Governor, and either 
(1) state or local officials have imposed or recommended measures to promote social
distancing; or (2) the legislative body determines by majority vote that meeting in person

12



2300 County Center Drive, Suite B 100, Santa Rosa, California  95403  Phone: 707.565.3579  Visit our website at www.zerowastesonoma.gov 

would present imminent risks to the health and safety of attendees.  As a result, if Zero 
Waste Sonoma desires to have virtual meetings on or after October 1, 2021, it must do so 
consistent with the requirements of AB 361.  

III. DISCUSSION

AB 361 preserves many of the provisions of the earlier executive orders, including the
suspension of the four teleconferencing requirements noted above, while also adding new
requirements to the management of remote and teleconference public meetings in order to
better achieve the levels of transparency that the Brown Act demands.  Specifically, AB 361
imposes two new rules on remote public meetings:

1. Local governments and agencies hosting teleconference meetings in lieu of
traditional in-person public meetings must permit direct public comment during the
teleconference, and must leave open the opportunity for public comment until the
comment period for a given item is closed during the ordinary course of the
meeting. The opportunity to make public comment must be of a sufficient duration
so as to allow actual public participation.  Zero Waste Sonoma already complies with
this requirement, so it presents no change to our current practice.

2. Any action by the governing body during a public teleconference meeting must
occur while the agency is actively and successfully broadcasting to members of the
public through a call-in option or an internet-based service option. If a technical
disruption within the agency’s control prevents members of the public from either
viewing the meeting of the public agency, or prevents members of the public from
offering public comment, the agency must cease all action on the meeting agenda
until the disruption ends and the broadcast is restored. Action taken during an
agency-caused disruption may be challenged as a violation of the Brown Act.

In order to continue to qualify for AB 361’s waiver of in-person meeting requirements, the 
Board must, within thirty (30) days of its first meeting under AB 361, and every thirty (30) 
days thereafter, make findings that (a) state or local officials recommend measures to 
promote social distancing, or that (b) an in-person meeting would constitute an imminent 
risk to the safety of attendees.  State officials at Cal-OSHA have, through the adoption of 
certain regulations, recommend measures to promote social distancing throughout the 
State.  Additionally, on September 22, 2021, Sonoma County Health Officer Dr. Sundari 
Mase has issued a recommendation to continue online meetings (teleconference meetings) 
as those meetings promote social distancing, and “present the lowest risk of transmission of 
SARS-CoV-2, the virus that causes COVID-19.”  Dr. Mase recommended that if an agency 
holds in person meetings, a written safety protocol be developed and followed, requiring 
social distancing and that face masks be worn.  Dr. Mase also recommended that for in 
person meetings, an agency consider holding meetings outdoors to reduce the risk of 
COVID-19 transmission. 

The enclosed resolution makes the necessary findings for the Board, which is subject to the 
Brown Act, to continue with virtual meetings for the time being.  As the Board meets on the 

13



2300 County Center Drive, Suite B 100, Santa Rosa, California  95403  Phone: 707.565.3579  Visit our website at www.zerowastesonoma.gov 

third Thursday of every month, it is possible that more than 30 days may elapse between 
consecutive meetings. AB 361 is silent as to whether special meetings are required on a 
more frequent basis to keep up with the 30-day renewal of findings requirement, although 
scheduling such meetings would ensure strict compliance. Alternatively, if the Board does 
not meet within thirty days after its prior meeting, the Board should make its renewed 
findings at the beginning of its next meeting prior to any other action or discussion.  Board 
staff will return to the Board with a resolution every meeting to allow for the continuance of 
virtual meetings for so long as the Board and staff believes that virtual meetings are 
necessary. 

It is important to that AB 361 does not require Zero Waste Sonoma to continue with virtual 
meetings, but simply gives the Board that option. If at any time the Board desires to return 
to in person meetings, the Board can agendize that topic for discussion and direct staff to 
initiate the transition back to in-person or hybrid meetings. However, at this time, Board 
staff is recommending adoption of the resolution to allow the Board to continue to be held 
remotely in order to ensure social distancing consistent with the recommendations of state 
and local officials. 

IV. FUNDING IMPACT

There is no fiscal impact for this item

V. CONCLUSION

Staff recommends that the Board adopt Resolution No. 2022-10, making findings and
determinations under AB 361 for the continuation of virtual meetings.

VI. ATTACHMENTS

1. Resolution Making Findings and Determinations under AB 361
2. 9/22/2021 Recommendation of the Health Officer: Public Meetings

14



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-10 
DATED:  April 21, 2022 

A RESOLUTION OF THE SONOMA COUNTY WASTE MANAGEMENT AGENCY (ALSO KNOWN AS ZERO 
WASTE SONOMA) MAKING FINDINGS AND DETERMINATIONS UNDER AB 361 FOR CONTINUED 

VIRTUAL MEETINGS 

WHEREAS, the Ralph M. Brown Act (Gov. Code § 54950 et seq.) generally requires local agencies 
meeting via teleconference, including through other virtual or electronic means, to provide public access 
at each location in which members of the legislative body are teleconferencing; and 

WHEREAS, the Legislature recently enacted Assembly Bill 361, Chapter 165, Statutes of 2021 (“AB 
361”), which amended Government Code section 54953 to allow local agencies to meet fully virtually 
during a proclaimed state of emergency if state or local officials have imposed or recommended measures 
to promote social distancing; and 

WHEREAS, the Governor issued a proclamation declaring a state of emergency on March 4, 2020 
due to the COVID-19 pandemic, pursuant to section 8625 of the California Emergency Services Act, and 
this proclaimed state of emergency currently remains in effect; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of the Sonoma County Waste Management Agency (also known as Zero 
Waste Sonoma) has considered the circumstances of the state of emergency; and  

WHEREAS, state or local officials continue to recommend measures to promote social distancing; 
and 

WHEREAS, according to the Sonoma County Health Officer, the grounds for the social distancing 
recommendation include that online meetings (teleconference meetings) “present the lowest risk of 
transmission of SARS-CoV-2, the virus that causes COVID-19”; and 

WHEREAS, the continuation of virtual meetings will allow for full participation by members of the 
public until social distancing recommendations are lifted; and  

WHEREAS, the Board of the Sonoma County Waste Management Agency desires to continue to 
hold virtual meetings pursuant to AB 361 and Government Code section 54953(e). 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Directors of the Sonoma County Waste 
Management Agency hereby finds, determines, and resolves as follows: 

1. The above recitals and true and correct and shall be the findings of the Board of Directors of
the Sonoma County Waste Management Agency.

2. The Board of Directors the Sonoma County Waste Management Agency shall continue to meet
virtually in accordance with Government Code section 54953(e) and without compliance with
section 54953(b)(3) based upon the findings and determinations hereby made by the Board.

PASSED, APPROVED, and ADOPTED, by the Board of Directors of the Sonoma County Waste 
Management Agency, on this 21st day of April, 2022, by the following vote: 

15



Resolution 2022-10 
Page 2 of 2 

MEMBERS: 

- - - - - - - - - - 
Cloverdale Cotati County Healdsburg Petaluma 

- - - - - - - - - - 
Rohnert Park Santa Rosa Sebastopol Sonoma Windsor 

AYES: - - NOES: - - ABSENT: - - ABSTAIN: - - 

SO ORDERED 

The within instrument is a correct copy of the original on file with this office 

ATTEST:   DATE:  April 21, 2022 

Clerk of the Sonoma County Waste Management Agency 
In and for the County of Sonoma 

16



10/11/21, 7:17 PM Recommendation of the Health Officer: Public Meetings - Sonoma County Emergency and Preparedness Information

https://socoemergency.org/recommendation-of-the-health-officer-public-meetings/ 1/4

Emergency

September 24, 2021 10:38 AM

Recommendation of the
Health O�cer: Public
Meetings

En Español [https://socoemergency.org/recomendacion-del-funcionario-

de-salud-reuniones-publicas/]

County of Sonoma 
Emergency Readiness, Response and Recovery

17

https://socoemergency.org/recomendacion-del-funcionario-de-salud-reuniones-publicas/
https://socoemergency.org/


10/11/21, 7:17 PM Recommendation of the Health Officer: Public Meetings - Sonoma County Emergency and Preparedness Information

https://socoemergency.org/recommendation-of-the-health-officer-public-meetings/ 2/4

Sonoma County Public Health
Recommendations for Safely Holding Public
Meetings

1. Online meetings (teleconferencing meetings) are strongly

recommended as those meetings present the lowest risk of

transmission of SARS-CoV-2, the virus that causes COVID-19.

2. If a local agency determines to hold in-person meetings, o�ering the

public the opportunity to attend via a call-in option or an internet-

based service option is recommended, when possible, to give those at

higher risk of and/or higher concern about COVID-19 an alternative to

participating in person.

3. If a local agency holds in person meetings, a written safety protocol

should be developed and followed. It is recommended that the

September 22, 2021

Each local government agency is authorized to determine whether to

hold public meetings in person, online (teleconferencing only), or via

a combination of methods. The following are recommendations from

Sonoma County Public Health to minimize the risk of COVID-19

transmission during a public meeting of a legislative body held in

compliance with Government Code section 54953(e):

18



10/11/21, 7:17 PM Recommendation of the Health Officer: Public Meetings - Sonoma County Emergency and Preparedness Information

https://socoemergency.org/recommendation-of-the-health-officer-public-meetings/ 3/4

protocol require social distancing – i.e., six feet of separation between

attendees – and face masking of all attendees in compliance with

Order of the Health O�cer of the County of Sonoma C19-25.

4. If a local agency holds in person meetings, seating arrangements

should allow for sta� and members of the public to easily maintain at

least six-foot distance from one another at all practicable times.

5. Consider holding public meetings outdoors. Increasing scienti�c

consensus is that outdoor air�ow reduces the risk of COVID-19

transmission compared to indoor spaces. Hosting events outdoors

also may make it easier to space sta� and members of the public at

least six feet apart.

6. Current evidence is unclear as to the added bene�t of temperature

checks in addition to symptom checks. We encourage focus on

symptom checks as they may screen out individuals with symptoms

but no fever and help reinforce the message to not go out in public if

you are not feeling well.

7. Consider a voluntary attendance sheet with names and contact

information to assist in contact tracing of any cases linked to a public

meeting.

19

https://socoemergency.org/order-of-the-health-officer-of-the-county-of-sonoma-c19-25/


10/11/21, 7:17 PM Recommendation of the Health Officer: Public Meetings - Sonoma County Emergency and Preparedness Information

https://socoemergency.org/recommendation-of-the-health-officer-public-meetings/ 4/4

Dr. Sundari R. Mase, MD MPH

Health O�cer of the County of Sonoma

20



2300 County Center Drive, Suite B 100, Santa Rosa, California  95403  Phone: 707.565.3579 www.zerowastesonoma.gov

Agenda Item #: 4.4 
Cost Center:  All 
Staff Contact:  Collard 
Agenda Date:  4/21/2022 
Approved By:  LL 

ITEM:  ZWS FY 2021/22 Third Quarter Financial Report 

I. RECOMMENDED ACTION / ALTERNATIVES TO RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends approving the FY 2021/22 Third Quarter Financial Report on the Consent
Calendar.

II. BACKGROUND

This report covers the Third Quarter of FY 21-22 (July 1, 2021 - March 31, 2022) in accordance
with the requirement in the joint powers agreement the Sonoma County Waste Management
Agency/Zero Waste Sonoma staff make quarterly reports to the Board of Directors of Agency
operations and of all receipts to and disbursements from the ZWS.

III. DISCUSSION

The Third Quarter Financial Report uses information from the County accounting system,
Enterprise Financial System (EFS), for expenditures and revenues.  The FY 2021-22 Third Quarter
Financial Report contains the actual amounts spent or received to date at the end of the quarter,
the projected revenues and expenses, the adjusted budget, and the difference between the
budget and the projections.

Actual revenues are lower than budget predictions in the report as the revenue from the County
of Sonoma (tipping fees and ZWS surcharge) were two months behind.

Interdepartmental transfers of shared administrative and overhead expenditures (county car,
copier and storage rental, website expenditures, etc.) have not been processed yet, so some
expenditures in the Education Fund are higher then normal.

IV. ATTACHMENTS

Third Quarter Financial Report FY 2021-22 Revenue and Expenditure Summary

21



66110300 SCWMA - Organics Reserve
Department / 
Account Description

Original
Budget

Final
Budget Year to Date

Remaining 
Balance

% 
Remaining

All Revenues

44002 Interest on Pooled Cash 22,307.00 22,307.00 10,255.17 12,051.83 54.03%

All Revenues 22,307.00 22,307.00 10,255.17 12,051.83 54.03%

All Expense/Expenditure Accts

51201 Administration Services 55,999.00 55,999.00 0.00 55,999.00 100.00%

51206 Accounting/Auditing Services 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 100.00%

51212 Outside Counsel - Legal Advice 35,000.00 35,000.00 2,265.90 32,734.10 93.53%

51916 County Services Chgs 379.00 379.00 0.00 379.00 100.00%

52111 Office Supplies 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 100.00%

All Expense/Expenditure Accts 93,378.00 93,378.00 2,265.90 91,112.10 97.57%

All Expense/Expenditure Accts 93,378.00 93,378.00 2,265.90 91,112.10

All Revenues 22,307.00 22,307.00 10,255.17 12,051.83

Net Cost 71,071.00 71,071.00 (7,989.27) 79,060.27

66110900 SCWMA - Contingency Fund
Department / 
Account Description

Original
Budget

Final
Budget Year to Date

Remaining 
Balance

% 
Remaining

All Revenues

44002 Interest on Pooled Cash 18,485.00 18,485.00 4,659.37 13,825.63 74.79%

47101 Transfers In - within a Fund 65,000.00 1,988,858.00 1,923,858.00 65,000.00 3.27%

All Revenues 83,485.00 2,007,343.00 1,928,517.37 78,825.63 3.93%

All Expense/Expenditure Accts

51201 Administration Services 87,849.00 87,849.00 21,335.11 66,513.89 75.71%

51206 Accounting/Auditing Services 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 100.00%

51212 Outside Counsel - Legal Advice 20,000.00 20,000.00 0.00 20,000.00 100.00%

51801 Other Services 0.00 0.00 7,265.00 (7,265.00) 0.00%

51803 Other Contract Services 115,000.00 115,000.00 4,065.00 110,935.00 96.47%

51916 County Services Chgs 217.00 217.00 0.00 217.00 100.00%

52111 Office Supplies 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 100.00%

52162 Special Department Expense 150,000.00 300,000.00 70,911.60 229,088.40 76.36%

57011 Transfers Out - within a Fund 65,000.00 496,530.00 431,530.00 65,000.00 13.09%

All Expense/Expenditure Accts 440,066.00 1,021,596.00 535,106.71 486,489.29 47.62%

All Expense/Expenditure Accts 440,066.00 1,021,596.00 535,106.71 486,489.29

All Revenues 83,485.00 2,007,343.00 1,928,517.37 78,825.63

Net Cost 356,581.00 (985,747.00) (1,393,410.66) 407,663.66

22



66110400 SCWMA - HHW
Department / 
Account Description

Original
Budget

Final
Budget Year to Date

Remaining 
Balance

% 
Remaining

All Revenues

42358 State Other Funding 78,349.00 78,349.00 0.00 78,349.00 100.00%

42601 County of Sonoma 1,938,054.00 1,938,054.00 1,260,244.55 677,809.45 34.97%

44002 Interest on Pooled Cash 13,357.00 13,357.00 5,068.96 8,288.04 62.05%

46029 Donations/Contributions 167,394.00 167,394.00 114,823.79 52,570.21 31.41%

46200 PY Revenue - Miscellaneous 0.00 0.00 18,767.39 (18,767.39) 0.00%

All Revenues 2,197,154.00 2,197,154.00 1,398,904.69 798,249.31 36.33%

All Expense/Expenditure Accts

51041 Insurance - Liability 2,016.00 2,016.00 2,261.23 (245.23) -12.16%

51071 Maintenance - Bldg & Improve 8,000.00 8,000.00 2,922.89 5,077.11 63.46%

51201 Administration Services 289,197.00 289,197.00 93,467.88 195,729.12 67.68%

51205 Advertising/Marketing Svc 15,500.00 15,500.00 10,201.57 5,298.43 34.18%

51206 Accounting/Auditing Services 2,700.00 2,700.00 0.00 2,700.00 100.00%

51207 Client  Accounting Services 4,141.00 4,141.00 0.00 4,141.00 100.00%

51212 Outside Counsel - Legal Advice 4,000.00 4,000.00 1,643.40 2,356.60 58.92%

51225 Training Services 800.00 800.00 900.00 (100.00) -12.50%

51229 Hazardous Waste Disposal Svc 28,000.00 28,000.00 6,456.96 21,543.04 76.94%

51249 Other Professional Services 52,022.00 52,022.00 26,890.77 25,131.23 48.31%

51401 Rents and Leases - Equipment 540.00 540.00 0.00 540.00 100.00%

51421 Rents and Leases - Bldg/Land 14,583.00 14,583.00 1,580.00 13,003.00 89.17%

51507 Special Departmental Expense 136,784.00 136,784.00 75,468.82 61,315.18 44.83%

51803 Other Contract Services 1,280,000.00 1,280,000.00 546,895.60 733,104.40 57.27%

51901 Telecommunication Data Lines 489.00 489.00 407.60 81.40 16.65%

51902 Telecommunication Usage 156.00 156.00 1.62 154.38 98.96%

51904 ISD - Baseline Services 10,627.00 10,627.00 3,753.06 6,873.94 64.68%

51909 Telecommunication Wireless Svc 2,040.00 2,040.00 2,099.68 (59.68) -2.93%

51911 Mail Services 100.00 100.00 5.52 94.48 94.48%

51916 County Services Chgs 8,679.00 8,679.00 0.00 8,679.00 100.00%

51922 County Car Expense 270.00 270.00 0.00 270.00 100.00%

52091 Memberships/Certifications 5,683.00 5,683.00 4,650.00 1,033.00 18.18%

52111 Office Supplies 2,500.00 2,500.00 850.05 1,649.95 66.00%

52115 Books/Media/Subscriptions 167.00 167.00 0.00 167.00 100.00%

52162 Special Department Expense 259.00 259.00 0.00 259.00 100.00%

52163 Professional Development 8,300.00 8,300.00 2,810.00 5,490.00 66.14%

52191 Utilities Expense 6,132.00 6,132.00 1,797.60 4,334.40 70.68%

57011 Transfers Out - within a Fund 313,470.00 1,614,427.00 1,300,957.00 313,470.00 19.42%

All Expense/Expenditure Accts 2,197,155.00 3,498,112.00 2,086,021.25 1,412,090.75 40.37%

All Expense/Expenditure Accts 2,197,155.00 3,498,112.00 2,086,021.25 1,412,090.75

All Revenues 2,197,154.00 2,197,154.00 1,398,904.69 798,249.31

Net Cost 1.00 1,300,958.00 687,116.56 613,841.44

23



66111000 Education & Outreach
All Revenues

42358 State Other Funding 167,172.00 167,172.00 0.00 167,172.00 100.00%

42601 County of Sonoma 562,661.00 562,661.00 365,877.46 196,783.54 34.97%

46029 Donations/Contributions 45,985.00 45,985.00 28,924.91 17,060.09 37.10%

46050 Cancelled/Stale Dated Warrants 0.00 0.00 143.87 (143.87) 0.00%

47101 Transfers In - within a Fund 65,000.00 65,000.00 0.00 65,000.00 100.00%

All Revenues 840,818.00 840,818.00 394,946.24 445,871.76 53.03%

All Expense/Expenditure Accts

51041 Insurance - Liability 1,568.00 1,568.00 1,758.74 (190.74) -12.16%

51201 Administration Services 532,651.00 532,651.00 357,451.97 175,199.03 32.89%

51205 Advertising/Marketing Svc 10,000.00 10,000.00 114.06 9,885.94 98.86%

51206 Accounting/Auditing Services 2,100.00 2,100.00 0.00 2,100.00 100.00%

51207 Client  Accounting Services 3,221.00 3,221.00 0.00 3,221.00 100.00%

51212 Outside Counsel - Legal Advice 15,000.00 15,000.00 6,822.60 8,177.40 54.52%

51214 Agency Extra/Temp Help 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 100.00%

51241 Outside Printing and Binding 3,000.00 3,000.00 445.90 2,554.10 85.14%

51249 Other Professional Services 140,653.00 140,653.00 135,549.48 5,103.52 3.63%

51401 Rents and Leases - Equipment 420.00 420.00 2,101.76 (1,681.76) -400.42%

51421 Rents and Leases - Bldg/Land 2,696.00 2,696.00 2,704.00 (8.00) -0.30%

51803 Other Contract Services 30,000.00 30,000.00 20,109.84 9,890.16 32.97%

51805 Cnty Spor'shp of events/orgs 2,500.00 2,500.00 1,300.00 1,200.00 48.00%

51901 Telecommunication Data Lines 6,359.00 6,359.00 3,831.44 2,527.56 39.75%

51902 Telecommunication Usage 1,185.00 1,185.00 774.75 410.25 34.62%

51904 ISD - Baseline Services 11,326.00 11,326.00 12,475.02 (1,149.02) -10.14%

51909 Telecommunication Wireless Svc 6,036.00 6,036.00 4,223.69 1,812.31 30.03%

51911 Mail Services 500.00 500.00 796.61 (296.61) -59.32%

51916 County Services Chgs 7,308.00 7,308.00 0.00 7,308.00 100.00%

51922 County Car Expense 210.00 210.00 901.31 (691.31) -329.20%

51923 Unclaimable county car exp 50.00 50.00 0.00 50.00 100.00%

52091 Memberships/Certifications 21,566.00 21,566.00 17,655.00 3,911.00 18.14%

52111 Office Supplies 8,220.00 8,220.00 4,053.82 4,166.18 50.68%

52114 Freight/Postage 4,000.00 4,000.00 3,036.98 963.02 24.08%

52115 Books/Media/Subscriptions 130.00 130.00 3,227.16 (3,097.16) -2382.43%

52118 Printing and Binding Supplies 4,400.00 4,400.00 1,000.00 3,400.00 77.27%

52162 Special Department Expense 202.00 31,602.00 750.00 30,852.00 97.63%

52163 Professional Development 19,520.00 19,520.00 2,022.00 17,498.00 89.64%

57011 Transfers Out - within a Fund 0.00 622,901.00 622,901.00 0.00 0.00%

All Expense/Expenditure Accts 840,821.00 1,495,122.00 1,206,007.13 289,114.87 19.34%

All Expense/Expenditure Accts 840,821.00 1,495,122.00 1,206,007.13 289,114.87

All Revenues 840,818.00 840,818.00 394,946.24 445,871.76

Net Cost 3.00 654,304.00 811,060.89 (156,756.89)

24



66111100 Organics
All Revenues

42358 State Other Funding 200,000.00 200,000.00 21,388.82 178,611.18 89.31%

42601 County of Sonoma 7,148,750.00 7,148,750.00 3,512,549.79 3,636,200.21 50.86%

46200 PY Revenue - Miscellaneous 0.00 0.00 67,569.02 (67,569.02) 0.00%

All Revenues 7,348,750.00 7,348,750.00 3,601,507.63 3,747,242.37 50.99%

All Expense/Expenditure Accts

51041 Insurance - Liability 7,616.00 7,616.00 8,542.44 (926.44) -12.16%

51201 Administration Services 378,860.00 378,860.00 74,848.80 304,011.20 80.24%

51206 Accounting/Auditing Services 10,200.00 10,200.00 0.00 10,200.00 100.00%

51207 Client  Accounting Services 15,643.00 15,643.00 0.00 15,643.00 100.00%

51212 Outside Counsel - Legal Advice 5,000.00 5,000.00 3,859.50 1,140.50 22.81%

51249 Other Professional Services 205,000.00 205,000.00 34,213.01 170,786.99 83.31%

51401 Rents and Leases - Equipment 2,040.00 2,040.00 0.00 2,040.00 100.00%

51421 Rents and Leases - Bldg/Land 2,203.00 2,203.00 0.00 2,203.00 100.00%

51803 Other Contract Services 6,655,528.00 6,655,528.00 4,040,204.46 2,615,323.54 39.30%

51901 Telecommunication Data Lines 489.00 489.00 1,304.32 (815.32) -166.73%

51902 Telecommunication Usage 26.00 26.00 24.14 1.86 7.15%

51904 ISD - Baseline Services 16,691.00 16,691.00 7,571.42 9,119.58 54.64%

51911 Mail Services 250.00 250.00 0.00 250.00 100.00%

51916 County Services Chgs 16,781.00 16,781.00 0.00 16,781.00 100.00%

51922 County Car Expense 1,020.00 1,020.00 0.00 1,020.00 100.00%

52091 Memberships/Certifications 12,555.00 12,555.00 12,065.00 490.00 3.90%

52111 Office Supplies 2,000.00 2,000.00 10,178.45 (8,178.45) -408.92%

52114 Freight/Postage 11,000.00 11,000.00 0.00 11,000.00 100.00%

52115 Books/Media/Subscriptions 629.00 629.00 0.00 629.00 100.00%

52162 Special Department Expense 979.00 979.00 0.00 979.00 100.00%

52163 Professional Development 1,100.00 1,100.00 2,576.30 (1,476.30) -134.21%

All Expense/Expenditure Accts 7,345,610.00 7,345,610.00 4,195,387.84 3,150,222.16 42.89%

All Expense/Expenditure Accts 7,345,610.00 7,345,610.00 4,195,387.84 3,150,222.16

All Revenues 7,348,750.00 7,348,750.00 3,601,507.63 3,747,242.37

Net Cost (3,140.00) (3,140.00) 593,880.21 (597,020.21)

66111200 Unfunded Pension Liability 
All Revenues

44002 Interest on Pooled Cash 6,586.00 6,586.00 1,689.52 4,896.48 74.35%

All Revenues 6,586.00 6,586.00 1,689.52 4,896.48 74.35%

All Expense/Expenditure Accts

51206 Accounting/Auditing Services 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 100.00%

All Expense/Expenditure Accts 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 100.00%

All Expense/Expenditure Accts 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00

All Revenues 6,586.00 6,586.00 1,689.52 4,896.48

Net Cost (5,586.00) (5,586.00) (1,689.52) (3,896.48)

25



66111300 Debt Servicing Reserve
All Revenues

47101 Transfers In - within a Fund 0.00 431,530.00 431,530.00 0.00 0.00%

All Revenues 0.00 431,530.00 431,530.00 0.00 0.00%

All Expense/Expenditure Accts

All Revenues 0.00 431,530.00 431,530.00 0.00

Net Cost 0.00 (431,530.00) (431,530.00) 0.00

26



3rd Quarter Fund Balances FY 21/22

Fund
 Beginning 

Balance 3/31/2022
Projected 

Fund Balance
 Fund Balance 

Goal 
Organics Reserve 78103 2,264,678        2,272,668           2,159,603           1,836,403       
HHW 78104 1,771,878        1,084,761           1,335,747           470,921          
Contingency Reserve 78109 1,875,346        3,268,757           1,491,906           877,205          
Education & Outreach 78110 706,983            104,077              544,939              84,082            
Organics 78111 1,800,572        1,206,692           1,578,044           1,101,842       
Unfunded Pension Liability Rsv 78112 669,626            671,315              665,183              
Debt Servicing Reserve 78113 669,626            431,530              665,183              
Total 9,039,800           8,440,605           

27



2300 County Center Drive, Suite B 100, Santa Rosa, California  95403  Phone: 707.565.3579 www.zerowastesonoma.gov

Agenda Item #: 4.5 
Cost Center: HHW 
Staff Contact:  Scott 
Agenda Date:  4/21/2022 
Approved By:  LL 

ITEM:  Approval of Second Amendment to Agreement for E-Waste Handling, 
Transportation, and Recycling Services 

I. RECOMMENDED ACTION / ALTERNATIVES TO RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends that the Board approve the resolution authorizing the Zero Waste Sonoma
(ZWS) Executive Director to execute the Second Amendment to Agreement for E-Waste Handling,
Transportation, and Recycling Services (Agreement) with Onsite Electronics Recycling, LLC.

II. BACKGROUND

The management of e-waste generated in Sonoma County is a core function of ZWS. In March of
2018, ZWS staff issued a Board-approved RFP for E-Waste Transportation and Recycling Services
with the option of including handling services. Six proposals were received and the evaluation
committee selected ECS Refining as the highest ranking proposer and Onsite Electronics as the
second highest ranking proposer.

Shortly after scoring the proposals, ECS Refining informed ZWS that it had filed Chapter 11
Bankruptcy in an effort to restructure their debts to their investors. ECS Refining assured ZWS that
they were still able to uphold their proposal and after a month of careful consideration and
consulting with attorneys, ZWS chose ECS Refining to be awarded the contract. As a precaution,
staff suggested signing a backup contract with Onsite Electronics that would become effective
upon a written Notice to Proceed if ECS Refining was unable to uphold their agreement. The Board
approved both agreements on June 20, 2018.

Shortly after the agreements were approved, ECS Refining closed permanently and a Notice to
Proceed was provided to Onsite Electronics on July 10, 2018. Onsite Electronics has been
performing transportation and recycling services since then and started providing handling
services in February 2019 after the previous e-waste handling contract expired with Recology.

The original termination date in the Agreement with Onsite Electronics was June 30, 2021. In April
2021, the First Amendment was executed providing an annual extension with a new termination
date of June 30, 2022 and included an updated pricing structure. The payments to ZWS were
increased from $0.19/lb to $0.26/lb for Covered Electronic Waste as set by the State of California.
The costs to ZWS increased from $0.10/lb to $0.20/lb for Universal Waste Electronic Devices
(UWED) as a result of plastic recycling market changes. The cost of a trailer exchange also
increased from $525 per trailer to $850 per trailer based on actual labor costs realized through
operating experience.

The Agreement allows for a second annual extension.

28



2300 County Center Drive, Suite B 100, Santa Rosa, California  95403  Phone: 707.565.3579 www.zerowastesonoma.gov

III. DISCUSSION

ZWS staff and Onsite Electronics wish to utilize the second annual extension provided in the
contract with updates to the term of agreement and no other changes. The Second Amendment
would expire on June 30, 2023.

IV. FUNDING IMPACT

There are no changes to the pricing structure for the proposed extended term of the Agreement.

With both revenue and expenditures calculated, the cost to ZWS is approximately $96,784 per
year for E-Waste Handling, Transportation, and Recycling Services with Onsite Electronics.

V. ATTACHMENTS

1. Second Amendment to the Agreement
2. First Amendment to the Agreement
3. Original Agreement for E-Waste Handling, Transportation, and Recycling Services
4. Resolution

29



Second Amendment to Agreement for E-Waste Handling, Transportation, and Recycling Services 

1 

SECOND AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT FOR E-WASTE HANDLING, TRANSPORTATION, AND 
RECYCLING SERVICES 

This Second Amendment to Agreement for E-Waste Handling, Transportation, and 
Recycling Services (“Second Amendment”) is made as of the 21st day of April, 2022, by the 
Sonoma County Waste Management Agency (“SCWMA”) and Onsite Electronics Recycling, LLC 
(“Contractor”).  

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, SCWMA and Contractor entered into that certain Agreement for E-Waste 
Handling, Transportation, and Recycling Services (the “Agreement”), dated June 20, 2018, 
pursuant to which Contractor agreed to handle, sort, and transport electronic waste, and 
ensure the proper recycling of collected materials; and 

WHEREAS, that certain Agreement allows for up to two annual extensions upon written 
mutual agreement; and 

WHEREAS, SCWMA and Contractor entered into a First Amendment to the Agreement 
on April 15, 2021 that updated the pricing structure and is set to expire on June 30, 2022. 

NOW, THEREFORE, SCWMA and Contractor desire to extend the term of the Agreement 
to expire on June 30, 2023. 

AMENDMENT 

1. Amendment to Section 3, Term of Agreement. Section 3 of the Agreement is hereby
amended in its entirety to read as follows:

“3.  Term of Agreement.  The term of this Agreement shall be from Effective Date (July 10, 
2018) to June 30, 2023, unless terminated earlier in accordance with the provisions of 
Article 4 below.” 

2. No Other Changes. Except as amended by this Second Amendment, all other terms and
conditions in the Agreement shall remain unchanged and shall continue on in full force and
effect.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank] 

30



Second Amendment to Agreement for E-Waste Handling, Transportation, and Recycling Services 

2 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Second Amendment to 
Agreement for E-Waste Handling, Transportation, and Recycling Services on the day and year 
first above written.  

AGENCY: CONTRACTOR: 

SONOMA COUNTY WASTE MANAGEMENT ONSITE ELECTRONICS RECYCLING, LLC 
AGENCY 

By: By: 
Leslie Lukacs, Executive Director 

Its: 

Date:  Date:  

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

By: 
Ethan Walsh, Agency Counsel 

31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



RESOLUTION NO.: 2022-11 

DATED:  April 21, 2022 

 RESOLUTION OF THE SONOMA COUNTY WASTE MANAGEMENT AGENCY, ALSO KNOWN AS 
ZERO WASTE SONOMA, (“AGENCY”) AUTHORIZING A SECOND AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT 

WITH ONSITE ELECTRONICS RECYCLING, LLC (“CONTRACTOR”) FOR ELECTRONIC WASTE (E-
WASTE) HANDLING, TRANSPORTATION AND RECYCLING SERVICES  

WHEREAS, Contractor represents that it is duly qualified and experienced in 
Electronic Waste (“E-Waste”) handling, transportation, recycling and related services; 
and  

   WHEREAS, in the judgment of the Board of Directors of Agency, it is necessary 
and desirable to employ the services of Contractor for handling, transporting and 
recycling E-Waste collected at all transfer stations in Sonoma County. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Zero Waste Sonoma Board hereby 
authorizes the Agency’s Executive Director to execute the Second Amendment to 
Agreement with Onsite Electronics Recycling for E-Waste Handling, Transportation, and 
Recycling Services. 

MEMBERS: 

-  - -   - -  - -  - -   - 
Cloverdale Cotati County Healdsburg Petaluma 

-   - -   - -  - -  - -   - 
Rohnert Park Santa Rosa Sebastopol Sonoma Windsor 

AYES: -  -  NOES: -  - ABSENT: -  -   ABSTAIN: -  - 

SO ORDERED 

The within instrument is a correct copy 
of the original on file with this office. 

ATTEST:    DATE:  April 21, 2022 

_________________________________________ 
Clerk of Zero Waste Sonoma of the State of California 
in and for the County of Sonoma 

49



2300 County Center Drive, Suite B 100, Santa Rosa, California  95403  Phone: 707.565.3579  Visit our website at www.zerowastesonoma.gov 

Agenda Item #: 5 
Cost Center:  HHW 
Staff Contact:  Scott 
Agenda Date:  4/21/22 
Approved By:  LL 

ITEM:  Approval of the Third Amendment to the Agreement for Household 
Hazardous Waste Operations 

I. RECOMMENDED ACTION / ALTERNATIVES TO RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends the Board approve the resolution authorizing the Zero Waste Sonoma (ZWS)
Executive Director to execute the Third Amendment to the Agreement for Household Hazardous
Waste (HHW) Operations (Agreement) with Clean Harbors Environmental Services (Clean
Harbors).

II. BACKGROUND

The management of HHW generated in Sonoma County is a core function of ZWS.  Current
programs operated by Clean Harbors include the permanent HHW Facility for residents and Very
Small Quantity Generating (VSQGs) businesses, weekly temporary HHW Collection Events, and the
HHW Rover Service.

In March of 2014, the SCWMA released a request for proposals for Operations of Household
Hazardous Waste Programs and entered into an agreement with Clean Harbors Environmental
Services (Clean Harbors) on May 21, 2014.  The First Amendment to the Agreement was approved
on November 16, 2016 to include a Consumer Price Index (CPI) increase in personnel costs up to
3% annually and a termination date of June 30, 2019.

In April 2019, the Board approved a Second Amendment to the Agreement that included a three-
year extension and an updated pricing structure with an estimated increase of $102,118 over a
three-year period. Cost increases for year one included 3% to personnel costs, 2% for disposal
costs, and a 2% California Road Repair and Accountability Act (CARRAA) fee applied to disposal
rates. Cost increases for year two and three included up to a 3% CPI for all contract rates and a 2%
CARRAA fee applied to disposal rates.

The Second Amendment expires on June 30, 2022.

III. DISCUSSION

In early FY 21-22, initial discussions with Clean Harbors indicated that a one-year extension could
be implemented at no additional cost. However, after the ZWS Board approved the draft FY 22-23
ZWS Annual Budget, Clean Harbors indicated they would likely require a fee increase due to
inflation. On February 15, 2022, Clean Harbors provided staff with three options for fee increases
citing increased personnel, material, and freight costs. Option 1 included a 4.2% increase on all
contract items with pricing adjusted every 120 days based on the CPI index. Option 2 included an
8% price increase on all contract items for the duration of the one-year contract. Option 3 would
add a $1,250 fee to each van shipment of waste, a $500 fee per day for box trucks, and $75/hour

50



2300 County Center Drive, Suite B 100, Santa Rosa, California  95403  Phone: 707.565.3579  Visit our website at www.zerowastesonoma.gov 

for a Contract Manager for 208 hours. On March 8, Clean Harbors sent out an email to all 
customers notifying them of an 8%-15% cost increase effective April 1, 2022. This has not applied 
to ZWS because of the existing contract.  

Staff hired R3 Consulting Group, Inc (R3) to review the options and provide a recommendation. 
Citing “uncertain times with rising fuel costs and abnormal elements of inflation”. R3 suggested 
that ZWS choose Option 2, the 8% increase. The full R3 Analysis is included as an attachment. 

With the consideration of an 8% increase, staff determined that performance measures and 
liquidated damages should be included in the Agreement to ensure performance accountability as 
contract termination is one of the only remedies included in the current Agreement. The Third 
Amendment includes liquidated damages for the following categories: reporting, manifesting, 
battery sorting, collection events, safety, regulatory, paint service, and other. 

The Third Amendment also reduces the required reuse rate from 20% to 8%, clarifies the reuse 
calculation method, requires labor invoices to be received by the 15th of the month for the 
preceding month, requires disposal invoices to be received within sixty days of the end of the 
month, extends the term of the agreement to June 30, 2023, and provides an 8% price increase to 
all contract rates. 

IV. FUNDING IMPACT

The R3 Analysis indicated that the 8% increase could equate up to $124,000. ZWS has already
approved a FY 2022-23 budget of $1,449,000 for HHW operations services with Clean Harbors that
included a buffer based on operational and economic uncertainties related to COVID. Staff
believes this should be enough to cover the 8% increase based on Calendar Year 2021 disposal
costs. Staff will monitor expenditures and will ask the Board to increase appropriations if
necessary.

V. ATTACHMENTS
1. Third Amendment to the Agreement with Clean Harbors Environmental Services for

Household Hazardous Waste Operations
2. Resolution
3. R3 Consulting Group report: Zero Waste Sonoma Clean Harbors Contract Extension Analysis
4. Clean Harbors memo: Contract Extension

51



THIRD AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT FOR HOUSEHOLD HAZARDOUS WASTE OPERATIONS 

This Third Amendment to the Household Hazardous Waste Operations Agreement (“Third 
Amendment”) is made and entered into this 21st day of April, 2022, by and between the Sonoma County 
Waste Management Agency (“Agency”), a joint powers Agency, and Clean Harbors Environmental 
Services, Inc., its affiliates and subsidiaries a Massachusetts Corporation, ("Contractor"). Agency and 
Contractor are sometimes collectively referred to as the "parties" and singularly, as "party".  

RECITALS 

A. Agency and Contractor entered into an Agreement for Household Hazardous Waste
Operations ("Agreement") dated July 1, 2014, a First Amendment to Agreement dated
November 16, 2016, and a Second Amendment to Agreement dated April 17, 2019.

B. The Parties desire to extend the term of the Agreement by one year to expire on June 30,
2023, increase compensation by 8%, and to establish performance standards and
liquidated damages.

AMENDMENT 

1. Amendment to Section 2.2.9. Section 2.2.9 is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows:

"2.2.9 Reuse. Contractor shall make available a reuse area at all Mobile Program 
Sites and the HHW Facility. At minimum, Contractor shall open the reuse area located at 
the HHW Facility to the public Thursday through Saturday 7:30 a.m. to 2:30 p.m. 
Contractor shall make each Program participant aware of the reuse program through 
verbal or written communication. Contractor shall include the Reuse and Recycling policy 
statement, Exhibit C, in all of its employee training manual. Contractor shall follow the 
following procedures for handling reuse items: 

• Identify any products in their original containers that are in good, non-
leaking condition, and original labels intact.

• Confirm that such product (hazardous component) is still available on the
market at the time of distribution.

• Confirm that product has not expired if there is an expiration date and/or
known shelf life.

• Place reuse item in designated area/locker. Agency has final decision over
distribution of reuse material.

52



• Participant must sign a liability waiver covering both Agency and
Contractor provided by Agency and approved by the Contractor. The
waiver shall identity all reuse products by category and weight before
leaving the site with the material. The waiver applies to staff as well as the
public.

• Maintain log of all release forms in chronological order.

• Provide all materials at no charge to the public.

• Materials shall be removed from the reuse program and appropriately
disposed if not claimed after six (6) months.

• Follow the Reusable Exchange Program Quality Assurance Plan and
Products Not To Be Redistributed list provided by the Agency, Exhibits D
and E. Either the Plan or the List may be changed by the Agency at any
time. 

• Achieve a minimum of an 8% reuse rate by total shipped weight."

2. Amendment to Section 3. Section 3 is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows:

"3. Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall commence on the 
Effective Date and terminate on June 30, 2023, provided however that the Agency 
anticipates the potential opening of a new additional HHW Facility at a location in 
Northern Sonoma County (a "North County HHW Facility") and the Agency may, in its sole 
discretion, terminate this Agreement prior to June 30, 2023 with six (6) months prior 
written notice to Contractor, in anticipation of the opening of a North County HHW 
Facility. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Agreement may be terminated earlier in 
accordance with the provisions of Article 13 below." 

3. Amendment to Amendment to Section 4.5. Section 4.5 is hereby amended in its entirety to
read as follows: 

"4.5 Payment Terms. Payment shall be made to Contractor by Agency within 
thirty (30) days after receipt of a complete invoice and upon the approval of the Agency's 
contract manager that the tasks and submittals are acceptable and adequate. A 
"complete invoice" shall include the following documentation in addition to the invoice: 
(a) copies of returned, signed Hazardous Waste manifests for all Hazardous Wastes billed;
and (b) status reports, as required. Agency shall notify Contractor of any invoice
discrepancies or issues in writing within ten (10) working days of receipt of an invoice.
Contractor shall respond to any such notice of deficiency in writing within fifteen (15)
days, and payment will be due from the Agency within fifteen (15) days after receipt of
such response. In the event that any issues or discrepancies remain after the Agency
receives such response, Agency nonetheless shall pay all undisputed amounts within the

53



fifteen (15) day period, and the parties will resolve the remaining issues or discrepancies 
in accordance with the procedures set forth above. Agency may withhold payment 
whenever Contractor fails to provide a complete invoice, until Contractor supplies Agency 
with a complete invoice. All invoices are to be directed to: 

Courtney Scott, Household Hazardous Waste Program Manager 
Sonoma County Waste Management Agency 
2300 County Center Drive, Suite B100 
Santa Rosa, CA 95403 
Courtney.Scott@sonoma-county.org 

Contractor is required to submit two types of invoices for: (1) labor, equipment, supplies 
and bond, and (2) disposal.  Contractor is required to submit to the Agency an accurate 
and complete invoice for labor, equipment, supplies and bond, including any supporting 
documentation, no later than the 15th of each month for the preceding month. Contractor 
is required to submit to the Agency an accurate and complete invoice for disposal, 
including any supporting documentation, no later than sixty (60) days from the close of 
each invoice period. Failure to comply with this requirement may result in the Agency 
assessing Contractor a fifty-dollar ($50) fine for each day the Contractor fails to meet this 
requirement." 

4. Amendment to Section 4.6. Section 4.6 is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows:

"4.6 Adjustment to Payment in 2022-23. All contract rates listed in Exhibit A-1, 
Exhibit A-2, and Exhibit H-1 shall be adjusted for one fiscal year not to exceed eight 
percent (8%) in that twelve-month period. All increases shall be adjusted on the 
Adjustment Date." 

5. Amendment to Section 13. Section 13.4 is hereby added and shall read as follows:

"13.4 Liquidated Damages. 

(a) General.  Contractor acknowledges and agrees that one of Agency's
primary goals in entering into this Agreement is to ensure that the provided services are 
of the highest quality; satisfaction remains at the highest level; that authorized programs 
are designed and implemented to achieve compliance with CalRecycle diversion 
requirements applicable to Agency; that fees for service remain competitive; and, that 
materials collected are put to the highest and best use to the extent feasible.  The Parties 
find that as of the time of the execution of this Agreement, it is impractical, if not 
impossible, to reasonably ascertain the extent of damages which shall be incurred by 
Agency as a result of a breach or inadequate performance by Contractor of its obligations 
under this Agreement. The factors relating to the impracticability of ascertaining damages 
include, but are not limited to, the fact that: (i) substantial damage results to members of 
the public who are denied services or denied quality or reliable service; (ii) such breaches 
cause inconvenience, anxiety, frustration, and deprivation of the benefits of the 

54



Agreement to individual members of the general public for whose benefit this Agreement 
exists, in subjective ways and in varying degrees of intensity which are incapable of 
measurement in precise monetary terms; (iii) that services might be available at 
substantially lower costs than alternative services and the monetary loss resulting from 
denial of services or denial of quality or reliable services is impossible to calculate in 
precise monetary terms; and (iv) the termination of this Agreement for such breaches, 
and other remedies are, at best, a means of future correction and not remedies which 
make the public whole for past breaches.  

(b) Service and Diversion Performance Standards; Liquidated Damages for
Failure to Meet Standards.  The Parties further acknowledge that consistent and reliable 
service is of utmost importance to Agency and that Agency has considered and relied on 
Contractor's representations as to its quality-of-service commitment in entering into this 
Agreement with it. The Parties further recognize that some quantified standards of 
performance are necessary and appropriate to ensure consistent and reliable service and 
performance. The Parties further recognize that if Contractor fails to achieve the 
performance standards, or fails to submit required documents in a timely manner, Agency 
and Agency's residents and businesses will suffer damages and that it is and will be 
impractical and extremely difficult to ascertain and determine the exact amount of 
damages. Therefore, without prejudice to the Agency's right to treat such non-
performance as an event of default under this Section, the Parties agree that the 
liquidated damages amount defined below represent reasonable estimates of the 
amount of such damages considering all of the circumstances existing on the effective 
date of this Agreement, including the relationship of the sums to the range of harm to 
Agency, customers and the community as a whole that reasonably could be anticipated 
and the anticipation that proof of actual damages would be costly or impractical. In 
placing their initials at the places provided, each Party specifically confirms the accuracy 
of the statements made above and the fact that each Party has had ample opportunity to 
consult with legal counsel and obtain an explanation of the liquidated damage provisions 
at the time that this Agreement was made. 

(c) Procedure for Assessing Liquidated Damages.

(i) Agency may determine the occurrence of events giving rise to
liquidated damages through the observation of its own employees or representatives, 
investigation of customer complaints or self-reporting by Contractor.  

(ii) Prior to assessing liquidated damages, and within thirty (30) days
of becoming aware of such violation, Agency shall give Contractor notice of its intention 
to do so. The notice will include a brief description of the incident(s)/non-performance. 
Contractor may review and make copies at its own expense of all information in the 
possession of Agency relating to incident(s)/non-performance.  Contractor may, within 
ten (10) working days after receiving notice, request a meeting with Agency to present 
evidence regarding the accuracy of the facts related to the incident. If a meeting is 

55



requested, it shall be held by the Executive Director or his/her designee. Contractor may 
present evidence relevant to the incident(s)/non-performance. The Executive Director or 
designee will provide Contractor with a written explanation of his or her determination 
on each incident(s)/non-performance prior to authorizing the assessment of liquidated 
damages. The decision of Agency shall be final and Contractor shall have been deemed to 
have exhausted its administrative remedies and can thereafter challenge such ruling in 
court.  

(iii) Contractor shall pay any Liquidated Damages assessed by Agency
on the next month’s disposal invoice following the date the Liquidated Damages are 
assessed. The assessment shall be reflected as a credit to Agency on the disposal invoice. 
If the amount of the Liquidated Damages exceeds the amount that Agency owes 
Contractor for said invoice, then Agency shall issue an invoice for the difference or roll 
over the credit to the following month’s disposal invoice, at Agency’s discretion.  

(iv) Contractor agrees to pay (as Liquidated Damages and not as a
penalty) the following amounts: 

LIQUIDATED DAMAGES 

Item Amount 

Reporting Failure to timely submit all 
twelve-monthly Status Reports 
for the twelve-month period and 
annual participation report to 
Agency by September 1  

$100 day and any CalRecycle fines 
for late report that the Agency is 
liable for due to Contractor's failure 
to timely report 

Manifesting Inaccurate manifest (with more 
than 3 errors) 

$500/instance 

Battery 
Sorting 

Maintaining three or more full 
55-gallon drums with unsorted
batteries

$100 per day in violation 

Battery 
Sorting 

Error in sorting batteries Contractor shall be liable for costs 
to Agency for any costs incurred by 
Agency for Contractor's improper 
sorting (e.g., companies send 
Agency an invoice for improper 
sorting) 

Event Failure to Show Up at Correct 
Location for Temporary HHW 
Collection Event  

$2,000 per instance, any fine 
assessed by a regulatory agency 
against Agency for Contractor's 

56



LIQUIDATED DAMAGES 

Item Amount 
error, any use fee or charge 
imposed by property owner against 
Agency for use of incorrect location 

Safety Allowing any member of the 
public to handle hazardous 
waste in the hot zone that did 
not come from their own vehicle 

$50 per incident 

Regulatory Failure to maintain regulatory 
documentation, including safety 
and operations plans  

$100 per document and any fine 
assessed by a regulatory agency 
against Agency for Contractor's 
violation  

Paint 
Service 

Failure to Reprocess Paint $200/Week 

6. Amendment to Section 17. Section 17 is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows:

"17. NOTICES. 

All notices, bills and payments shall be made in writing and may be given by personal 
delivery, by U.S. mail, or courier. Notices, bills and payments sent by mail shall be 
addressed as follows: 

Agency: Sonoma County Waste Management Agency  
Attention: Courtney Scott, HHW Program Manager 
2300 County Center Dr., Suite B 100 
Santa Rosa, CA 95403 
Phone: (707) 888-0476 
Email: Courtney.Scott@sonoma-county.org 

Contractor:      Clean Harbors Environmental Services, Inc. 
Attention: General Counsel (Urgent Contract Matter) 
P.O. Box 3442 
Boston, MA 02241-3442 
Phone: (781) 792-5000 
Toll-Free Phone: (800) 282-0058 

57

mailto:Courtney.Scott@sonoma-county.org


and when so addressed, shall be deemed given at the time of actual delivery. Changes 
may be made in the names and addresses of the person to whom notices, bills and 
payments are to be given by giving notice pursuant to this Section 17." 

7. No Other Changes.  Except as amended by this Third Amendment, all other terms and 
conditions in the Agreement shall remain unchanged and shall continue on in full force and effect. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Third Amendment to Agreement for 
Household Hazardous Waste Operations on the day and year first above written. 

AGENCY: CONTRACTOR: 

SONOMA COUNTY WASTE MANAGEMENT CLEAN HARBORS ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES, INC. 
AGENCY 

By: By: 
Leslie Lukacs, Executive Director Marc McReynolds, Senior Vice President, 

Western Region 

Date:  Date:  

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

By: 
Ethan Walsh, Agency Counsel 

58



RESOLUTION NO.: 2022-12 

DATED: April 21, 2022 

RESOLUTION OF THE SONOMA COUNTY WASTE MANAGEMENT AGENCY, ALSO KNOWN AS ZERO WASTE 
SONOMA, (“AGENCY”) AUTHORIZING A THIRD AMENDMENT TO THE AGREEMENT WITH CLEAN HARBORS 

ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES (“CHES”) FOR HOUSEHOLD HAZARDOUS WASTE OPERATIONS 

WHEREAS, the Agency and CHES entered into a certain Agreement on July 1, 2014 for CHES 
to perform household hazardous waste operations on behalf of the Agency with an expiration date of 
February 11, 2017; and 

WHEREAS, the Agency and CHES entered into a First Amendment to the agreement on 
November 16, 2016 to extend the term until June 30, 2019 and adjust the pricing structure; and  

WHEREAS, the Agency and CHES entered into a Second Amendment to the agreement on 
April 17, 2019 to extend the term until June 30, 2022 and adjust the pricing structure; and 

WHEREAS, the term of the aforementioned amendment will expire unless amended by the 
Agency. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Zero Waste Sonoma Board hereby authorizes 
the Agency’s Executive Director to execute the Third Amendment to the Agreement with CHES for 
Household Hazardous Waste Operations. 

MEMBERS: 

-  - -  - - - - - -  - 
Cloverdale Cotati County Healdsburg Petaluma 

- - -  - - - - - - - 
Rohnert Park Santa Rosa Sebastopol Sonoma Windsor 

AYES: - - NOES: - - ABSENT: - -  ABSTAIN: - - 

SO ORDERED. 

The within instrument is a correct copy 
of the original on file with this office. 

ATTEST:    DATE: April 21, 2022 

_________________________________________ 
Clerk of Zero Waste Sonoma of the State of California 
in and for the County of Sonoma 

59



Background 
Zero Waste Sonoma Clean Harbors Contract History 
Zero Waste Sonoma has an ongoing Contract with Clean Harbors Environmental Services, Inc. (Clean 
Harbors) to operate the existing Household Hazardous Waste Facility (HHW Facility), collect, process, 
and dispose of Household Hazardous Wastes from residents, businesses that qualify as Conditionally 
Exempt Small Quantity Generators (CESQG), a mobile program, door to door collection services, 
hazardous waste load check program, and emergency response cleanups.  

The original agreement was entered into on July 1, 2014 and was amended in November 2016 to adjust 
personnel cost by CPI not to exceed 3% annually and to extend the term through June 2019. The 
agreement was amended again in April 2019 to extend the term through June 30, 2022. In addition, the 
April 2019 amendment incorporated an annual cap on the Mobilization Cost Sheet not to exceed 3%, the 
Waste Disposal Costs not to exceed 2%, and the CARRAA fee not to exceed 2% of disposal costs. 

Clean Harbors contacted Zero Waste Sonoma on February 15, 2022 stating that their costs have 
increased drastically and laid out three options for price increases that would accompany a July 
1,2022 extension. 

》 Option 1: 4.2% increase on all contract items effective July 1, 2022. The pricing will 
then be adjusted (up or down) every 120 days based on the change in the CPI index 
from the period since last calculation. 

》 Option 2: 8% price increase on all contract items effective July 1, 2022 for the duration 
of the one-year extension. 

》 Option 3: A contract modification adding the following line-item unit rates to the 
contract: Van Transportation at $1,250.00 per shipment from the facility, Box Truck at 
$500.00 a day, and Contract Manager at $75.00 per hour for the listed 208 hours. 

Clean Harbors sent out an email, under separate cover, on March 3, 2022 that informed customers the 
company will be raising costs by anywhere from 8% to 15% on April 1, 2022. 

To: 
Courtney Scott, HHW Program Manager 
Thora Collard, Administrative Manager 

From: 
Alex Soulard, Sr. Project Analyst 
Carrie Baxter, Sr. Project Manager 

Date: March 18, 2022 

Subject: Zero Waste Sonoma Clean Harbors Contract Extension Analysis 

60
405 14th Street, Suite 350, Oakland, CA 94612    |    p  916.782.7821    |    f  916.782.7824    |    www.r3cgi.com 

http://www.r3cgi.com/


March 18, 2022 

Page 2 of 4 

Analysis of Options 
Option 1:   One-Time 4.2% Price Increase Plus Adjustment Every 

120-Days Based on CPI

4.2% increase on all contract items effective July 1st, 2022. The pricing will then be 
adjusted (up or down) every 120 days based on the change in the CPI index from the 
period since last calculation. 

Over the last 9 years, the CPI index used to adjust the current contract has increased every 120 days on 
average 0.79%, with the highest 120-day average increase at 1.63% and the lowest 120-day average 
increase at 0.02%. There have not been any instances where there was a decrease in the CPI index over 
that 9-year period, as shown in Chart 1, below. 

Taking the lower increase option that is assessed every few months would result in a lower initial cost 
increase to ZW Sonoma and would have the ability to go down if there is any reduction in CPI; however, 
this is not guaranteed and has not happened over the last nine years.  There is no protection against a 
higher rate increase as CPI continues to increase.  This option also leaves ZW Sonoma vulnerable with 
the potential of having three price increases over the course of a year with no limit on how high those 
increases may be. 

Assuming the average of 0.79% increase each 120-days with the initial 4.2% increase on July 1, 2022, 
ZW Sonoma is looking at a cumulative increase of 6.58% between July 1, 2022 and July 1, 2023. Table 
1A, below, shows the cumulative change. 

Table 1A (Low): 4.2% Increase with Average 0.79% Adjustment each 120-Days 

Rate Adjustment Date July 1 
2022 

Nov 1 
2022 

March 1 
2023 

July 1 
2023 

Percentage Increase 4.20% 0.79% 0.79% 0.79% 

Cumulative Percentage Increase 4.20% 4.99% 5.79% 6.58% 

61



March 18, 2022 

Page 3 of 4 

Being a bit more conservative, we also have considered what the cost impact would be if the highest 120-
day change over the last 9 years was applied. In this scenario, ZW Sonoma is looking at a cumulative 
increase of 9.09% between July 1, 2022 and July 1, 2023. Table 1B, below, shows the impact of the rate 
adjustment if during every 120-day period the change in CPI was 1.63% above the prior period. 

Table 1B (High): 4.2% Increase with Average 1.63% Adjustment each 120-Days 

Rate Adjustment Date July 1 
2022 

Nov 1 
2022 

March 1 
2023 

July 1 
2023 

Percentage Increase 4.20% 1.63% 1.63% 1.63% 

Cumulative Percentage Increase 4.20% 5.83% 7.46% 9.09% 

By applying these increases to current Clean Harbors disposal costs for FY 20/21 we estimate a 
projected increase in cost ranging from approximately $77,500 to $90,500. However, there is no cap on 
these increases in this option and we are in an uncertain times with rising fuel costs and abnormal 
elements of inflation. 

Option 2:  One-Time 8% Price Increase 

8% price increase on all contract items effective July 1st, 2022 for the duration of the 
one-year extension. 

This option offers a one-time increase. Costs will be controlled for that year, which does not necessarily 
open the rate adjustment terms in future years. Using the CPI projections stated under the Option 1 
analysis, the cumulative CPI increase for the 12-month period may range from 6.58% to 9.09%.   

The option of an 8% price increase is near the middle of this range. While there may be an initial cost 
savings by going with Option 1 there is a high potential for inflation to case the rates to continue 
increasing in future years. 

R3 has projected overall cost increases, based on FY 2021 disposal costs paid to Clean Harbors the 
increases in Options 1, 2, and 3 and has provided the data in Table 3, in the Recommendations section 
of this report. 

Estimates show that Option 1 has a lesser increase, however, Option 2 provides a firmly stated rate 
increase. At the high-cost estimate for Option 1, there is a $21,023 savings over Option 2. On the lower 
end of that estimate for CPI increase, there is a $40,494 savings over Option 2. These cost savings range 
from 1-3% of the current amount paid to Clean Harbors. 

The cap of the rate increase has distinct value at uncertain economic times, which we are experiencing 
right now. Fuel cost increases have not begun to show up in CPI figures to the degree that the nation has 
seen in recent weeks and there is potential to CPI to greatly exceed any estimates from recent years.   

The estimated potential excess cost ranging from approximately $34,000 to $47,000 by selecting Option 
2 over Option 1 is well worth the benefit of controlling any unprecedented increases in CPI.  

Overall, the estimated cost increase for Option 2 is approximately $124,000 over FY 20/21 Costs. 

62



March 18, 2022 

Page 4 of 4 

Option 3:  Contract Modification to Include Rates for Van Transportation, 
Box Trucks, and Contract Manager 

A contract modification adding the following line-item unit rates to the contract: Van 
Transportation at $1,250.00 per shipment from the facility, Box Truck at $500.00 a day, 
and Contract Manager at $75.00 per hour for the listed 208 hours. 

ZW Sonoma estimates that there should be Van Transportation occurring once a week. Box trucks are 
used an average of twice a week for Tuesday HHW Collection and Wednesday Rover Service. 

Contract Manager costs have not been assessed on ZW Sonoma previously as this is a regional position 
and has previously been part of the overhead costs. ZW Sonoma Staff estimates that a contract manager 
would likely only spend about 80 hours on their operations a year, but we have provided two scenarios 
where Clean Harbors bills the fully stated 208 hours and one with the estimated Contract Manager time of 
80 hours annually. Please Note: the Contract Manager is not a position that has been listed as a direct 
cost on any other Clean Harbor agreements we have access to from other municipalities. 

Table 2: Option 3 Additional Costs 

Additional Costs Unit Cost Estimated 
Units 

Total Additional 
Cost 

Van Transportation $ 1,250 52 $ 65,000 

Box Truck $    500 104 $ 52,000 

Contract Manager $    75 208 $ 15,600 
Contract Manager 

(ZW Sonoma Assumed Utilization Rate) $    75 80 $   6,000 

This will result in a total price increase ranging from $123,000 to $132,600 specific to the van 
transportation, box trucks, and Contract Manager costs. Additionally, per the contract, the material disposal 
costs would increase by CPI adjustment of 3.21 Percent from 2020 to 2021 based on the Bureau of Labor 
Statistics Data, which results in disposal price increase of approximately $50,000 for a total difference of 
approximately $182,500. 

Industry Standards 
Costs are on the rise in this sector just as in almost every portion of the economy today. Clean Harbors 
justification for needing a cost increase is likely valid and may not stop any time soon. Also, the effects of 
recent fuel cost increases have not fully impacted these rates yet. Considering that transportation is a 
large element of the services provided costs are likely to keep increasing in the immediate future. 

Recommendation 
R3 recommends that Zero Waste Sonoma select Option 2, which accepts a one-time 8% increase in 
costs and extends the contract with Clean Harbors until June 30, 2023.   

Table 3: Projects of Overall Cost Increase 
Annual Disposal Cost FY 20/21 1,551,482

Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Total
Current Disposal Cost 387,871$   387,871$   387,871$   387,871$   1,551,482$   

Projections Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Total % Increase
Option 1A (Low) 404,161$   406,204$   408,247$   410,289$   1,628,901$   4.99%
Option 1B (High) 404,161$   408,376$   412,591$   416,806$   1,641,933$   5.83%

Option 2 418,900$   418,900$   418,900$   418,900$   1,675,601$   8.00%
Option 3 400,321$   400,321$   400,321$   400,321$   1,733,885$   11.76%

63



Clean Harbors Environmental Services, Inc. 
4101 Industrial Way  
Benicia, CA94510 
www.cleanharbors.com 

“People and Technology Creating a Better Environment” 

Date:  February 15, 2022 

Courtney Scott 

2300 County Center Drive Suite B 100 

Santa Rosa, CA 95403 

RE:  Contract Extension 

Ms. Scott: 

Since 2006 Clean Harbors Environmental Services (CHES) has partnered with the Sonoma 

County Waste Management Agency (SCWMA) and Zero Waste Sonoma in the operation of the 

Household Hazardous Waste (HHW) Program servicing the residents of Sonoma County.  

During the past two years Clean Harbors has managed the program through unprecedented 

operating conditions including the Covid-19 pandemic, incinerator outages and network capacity 

limitations, and a national shortage of drivers and field labor.  Clean Harbors has attempted to 

maintain our services in this very challenging operating environment. Although we still have 

challenges with filling open driver and labor positions, we feel confident that our new 

management of this program will provide the highest level of service that your program expects.  

Over the last 12 months, Clean Harbors has also experienced a dramatic increase in the following 

key operating costs: Metal drums 41%, freight 28%, fiber containers/pallets 17%, and labor costs 

(chemists, technicians, drivers, plant personnel, and administrative support) over 8%.  All 

indications are that materials, freight and labor costs will continue to increase throughout 2022. 

Based on these factors, Clean Harbors will require an adjustment to the Zero Waste Sonoma 

HHW program unit rates to cover a portion of our increased operating costs.   

In continuance with our partnership, CHES is interested in extending our agreement with Zero 

Waste Sonoma and respectfully offer the following options for an extension beginning July 1st of 

2022.   

Option 1: 4.2% increase on all contract items effective July 1st, 2022.  The pricing will then be 

adjusted (up or down) every 120 days based on the change in the CPI index from the period since 

last calculation 

.   

Option 2: 8% price increase on all contract items effective July 1st, 2022 for the duration of the 

one-year extension.   

64



“People and Technology Creating a Better Environment” 

Option 3: A contract modification adding the following line item unit rates to the contract: Van 

Transportation at $1,250.00 per shipment from the facility, Box Truck at $500.00 a day, and 

Contract Manager at $75.00 per hour for the listed 208 hours.  

Thank you for your considering Clean Harbors as your continuing preferred environmental 

services partner to this important program.  If you have any questions please contact Curt Lock 

at 408-592-2585 or lock.curt@cleanharbors.com. 

Sincerely, 

Curt Lock,  

District Sales Manager Greater San Francisco Bay Area 

65

mailto:lock.curt@cleanharbors.com


4/15/2022 1

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR UPDATE

April 21, 2022

Leslie Lukacs

Zero Waste Sonoma

Executive Director

66



67



$2.5 MIL CALIFORNIA YOUTH WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT GRANT

68



69



BEVERAGE CONTAINER CRV KIOSK - SEBASTOPOL

70



71



72



FOOD RECOVERY GRANT - TRUCK

73



74



COMPOST REBATE PROGRAM

75



FIX-IT CLINIC & REUSE FAIR – MAY 14, 2022

76



77



AB 939 
Local Task 

Force

78



79



CA CLIMATE FELLOWSHIP

80



THANK YOU

 Leslie Lukacs

 Leslie.Lukacs@Sonoma-County.org

81

mailto:Leslie.Lukacs@Sonoma-County.org

	Agenda April 21, 2022
	Agenda Notes April 21, 2022
	Item 4.1: Minutes of the February 17, 2022 Meeting
	Item 4.2: February, March, April, and May 2022 Outreach Calendar
	Item 4.3: Resolution No. 2022-10, Making Findings and Determinations Under AB 361 for the Continuation of Virtual Meetings
	Item 4.4: ZWS FY 2021/22 Third Quarter Financial Report
	Item 4.5: Approval of Second Amendment to Agreement for E-Waste Handling, Transportation, and Recycling Services
	Item 5: Approval of the Third Amendment to the Agreement for Household Hazardous Waste Operations
	Item 6: Executive Director Update



